
Committee Agenda   

 

1 

 

 
Area Planning Subcommittee West 
Wednesday, 21st March, 2012 
 
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Room: Council Chamber  
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer 

Adrian Hendry - The Office of the Chief Executive 
Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 
01992 564246 

 
 
Members: 
 
Councillors J Wyatt (Chairman), Mrs E Webster (Vice-Chairman), R Bassett, J Collier, 
Mrs R Gadsby, D C Johnson, Ms Y  Knight, Mrs J Lea, W Pryor, A Mitchell MBE, 
Mrs M Sartin, Mrs P Smith, Ms S Stavrou and A Watts 
 
 
 
 

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND 
APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 7.00 P.M. IN 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE. 

 
WEBCASTING NOTICE 
 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy and copies made available to those that request it. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber public 
gallery area 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic Services 
Officer on 01992564249.



Area Planning Subcommittee West Wednesday, 21 March 2012 
 

2 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate 
their microphones before speaking.  
 
2. The Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing and copies of the recording could be 
made available for those that request it. 
 
If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should move to the upper public gallery” 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUBCOMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 8) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached. 

 
 3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
 4. MINUTES  (Pages 9 - 14) 

 
  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 22 February 

2012 as a correct record (attached). 
 

 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 
 

 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and 
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 15 - 48) 
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider the planning 
applications set out in the attached schedule 
 
Background Papers  
(i)   Applications for determination – applications listed on the schedule, letters of 
representation received regarding the applications which are summarised on the 



Area Planning Subcommittee West Wednesday, 21 March 2012 
 

3 

schedule.   
 
(ii)   Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of officers inspecting the 
properties listed on the schedule in respect of which consideration is to be given to the 
enforcement of planning control. 
 

 8. DELEGATED DECISIONS   
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 
determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the 
Members’ Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at 
the Civic Offices, Epping. 
 

 9. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion 
To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business set 
out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as 
amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement 
Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers 
Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the Constitution define 
background papers as being documents relating to the subject matter of the report 
which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 



Area Planning Subcommittee West Wednesday, 21 March 2012 
 

4 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are 
the public excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front 
page of the agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the 
Subcommittee.  
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on 
the day before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of 
the agenda. Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must 
register with Democratic Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning 
Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), 
the local Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would 
normally withdraw from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the 
meeting on an item and then withdraw.  
 
Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the 
Sub-Committee before leaving. 
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind 
that you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers 
may clarify matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-
Committee members.  
 
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will 
determine the application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my 
objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send 
further information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through 
Democratic Services or our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information 
sent to Councillors should be copied to the Planning Officer dealing with your 
application. 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they 
will listen to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear 
any speakers’ presentations.  
 
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) 
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and 
vote on either the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by 
the Subcommittee. Should the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action 
different to officer recommendation, they are required to give their reasons for doing 
so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or 
Structure Plan Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next 
meeting of the District Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your 
Voice’ 
 

Page 6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Area Planning Subcommittee West  2011-12 
 
Members of the Committee: 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

Cllr Wyatt 

Cllr Pryor 

Cllr Bassett Cllr Collier 

Cllr Watts 

Cllr Knight Cllr Mitchell Cllr Sartin Cllr Smith 

Cllr 
Webster 

Cllr 
Gadsby 

Cllr 
Johnson 

Cllr Stavrou 

Cllr Lea 

New! 
 
Use your Smartphone/tablet to find contact 
details of the members using this QR code 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Area Planning Subcommittee West Date: 22 February 2012  
    
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 

High Street, Epping 
Time: 7.30 - 8.06 pm 

  
Members 
Present: 

J Wyatt (Chairman), Mrs E Webster (Vice-Chairman), Ms Y  Knight, 
Mrs J Lea, A Mitchell MBE, Mrs P Smith and A Watts 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

 
  

  
Apologies: R Bassett, Mrs R Gadsby, D C Johnson, Mrs M Sartin and Ms S Stavrou 
  
Officers 
Present: 

J Godden (Planning Officer), M Jenkins (Democratic Services Assistant) and 
R Perrin (Democratic Services Assistant) 
 

  
 

49. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council’s Protocol for 
Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings. 
 

50. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements agreed by the Council, to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. 
 

51. MINUTES  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 25 January 
2012 be taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.  

 
52. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations made pursuant to the Member’s Code of Conduct. 
 

53. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
It was reported that there was no urgent business for consideration at the meeting. 
 

54. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  
 
The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 9



Area Planning Subcommittee West  22 February 2012 

2 

 
 RESOLVED: 
 
 That, Planning applications numbered 1 – 3 be determined as set out in the 

annex to these minutes. 
 

55. DELEGATED DECISIONS  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that details of planning applications determined by the 
Head of Planning Economic Development under delegated authority since the last 
meeting had been circulated to all members and were available for inspection at the 
Civic Offices. 
 
 

 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 10



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2467/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Lane End  

4 Nursery Road 
Nazeing 
Waltham Abbey 
Essex 
EN9 2JE 
 

PARISH: Nazeing 
 

WARD: Lower Nazeing 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Retrospective application for the insertion of window to side 
elevation. 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=533366 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 Within six weeks of the date of this decision notice the window opening hereby 
approved in the north east flank elevation at ground floor level facing Claremont 
shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass to prevent views into Claremont and shall 
have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the 
window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition. 
 

 
Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2477/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 111 Monkswood Avenue 

Waltham Abbey 
Essex 
EN9 1LJ 
 

PARISH: Waltham Abbey 
 

WARD: Waltham Abbey North East 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Application for removal of condition 5 'Off street parking' of 
planning permission EPF/2509/07. (Erection of a detached 
dwelling with garage and access and revised access to no. 
111 Monkswood Avenue. Amended application) 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
 

Minute Item 54

Page 3Page 11



Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=533392 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 Within three months from the date of this decision details of a scheme to 
permanently close the existing vehicular crossover on The Cobbins shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such works will 
be carried out in accordance with these agreed details within an agreed time scale. 
 

 
Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2556/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land Rear of 66 -70 Western Road 

Nazeing 
Essex 
EN9 2QQ 
 

PARISH: Nazeing 
 

WARD: Lower Nazeing 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Proposed 2 no. three bedroom detached two storey houses 
with integral garages and parking fronting Wheelers Close 
(amended application to EPF/0054/11 - allowed on appeal - 
amendments include larger kitchen areas, changes to and 
new windows, increased front porch roof and alterations to 
front parking area at No. 8 Wheelers Close.) 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=533713 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawing no: BF/6111.001 received 15th December 2011 
 

3 No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary 
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the 
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such approved details. 
 

4 No development shall take place until the hedge on the western boundary of the site 
and the trees shown on the approved plan No BF/6111.001 (received 15th 
December 2011) as being retained (and any trees whose canopies overhang the 
site) have been protected by strong fencing, the location and type to be previously 

Page 4Page 12



approved in writing by the local planning authority.  The fencing shall be erected in 
accordance with the approved details before any equipment, machinery or materials 
are brought onto the site for the purposes of the development, and shall be 
maintained until all equipment, machinery and surplus material have been removed 
from the site.  Nothing shall be stored or placed within any fenced area, and the 
ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be 
made without the prior written consent of the local planning authority.   
 
Reason: To ensure that the amenity value of the existing trees are safeguarded. 
 

5 Prior to commencement of the development details showing the means to prevent 
the discharge of surface water from the development onto the highway shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved 
scheme shall be carried out in its entirety prior to the access becoming operational 
and shall be retained at all times.   
 

6 No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority.  The approved 
Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period.  The Statement 
shall provide for: 
 
a) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors  
b) loading and unloading of plant and materials 
c) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development 
d) wheel cleaning facilities 
e) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction 
f) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from site preparation and 
construction works 
 

7 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
openings in the first floor flank elevations shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass 
and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which 
the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition. 
 

8 The garages and car parking spaces hereby permitted shall be provided before the 
occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted and shall be kept available for the 
parking of motor vehicles at all times.  The garage/car spaces shall be used solely 
for the benefit of the occupants of the dwelling of which forms part and their visitors 
and for no other purpose and shall be permanently retained as such. 
 

9 No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access 
within 6 metres of the highway boundary.   
 

10 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 08.00 to 17.30 Monday to Friday and 
09.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Page 5Page 13



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘WEST’ 

21 March 2012 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION 
OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE 

1. EPF/2338/11 
Shottentons Farm  
Pecks Hill  
Nazeing  

 

Grant Permission 
(Subject to S106) 17 

2. EPF/2438/11 
6 The Mead  
Nazeing New Road 
Nazeing 

 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 27 

3. EPF/0046/12 
Kingsmead School 
Epping Road 
Roydon 

 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 35 

4. EPF/0144/12 
Haslingfield 
Meadgate Road  
Carthegena Estate 
Nazeing 

 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 41 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2338/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Shottentons Farm  

Pecks Hill  
Nazeing  
Essex 
EN9 2NY 
 

PARISH: Nazeing 
 

WARD: Lower Nazeing 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Joe Colletti 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Construction of two blocks of glasshouses of 3.1ha and 6.2 
ha, irrigation reservoir, two buffer tanks, access roads, parking 
and landscaping. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (Subject to S106) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=532828 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
 

2 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule to ensure the 
landscaping of each phase  at an appropriate time) have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works shall be carried out 
as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as appropriate, and in 
addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed finished levels or 
contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor artefacts and 
structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above and below 
ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for planting or 
establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules of plants, 
including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where appropriate. If 
within a period of five years from the date of the planting or establishment of any 
tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is removed, 
uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another 
tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size as that originally planted shall 
be planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation. 
 
 

Page 17



3 No development shall take place until details of the proposed surface materials for 
the parking areas and access roads, have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The agreed surfacing shall be made of porous 
materials and retained thereafter or provision shall be made and retained thereafter 
to direct run-off water from the hard surface to a permeable or porous area or 
surface within the curtilage of the property. The agreed surface treatment shall be 
completed prior to the first occupation of the development or within 1 year of the 
substantial completion of the development hereby approved, whichever occurs first. 
 
 

4 The parking  and loading areas shown on the approved plan in relation to Phase 3 
and Phase 4 of the development shall be provided prior to the first use of each 
phase of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the parking of 
staff and for loading. 
 
 

5 The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) and Water 
management Plan, Job number: 210/2011, Revision: Final 1, 17/10/2011 and the 
following mitigation measures detailed within the FRA: Limiting surface water runoff 
to greenfield rates for all storm events up to and including 1 in 100 chance in any 
year event, taking the effects of climate change into account; Provision of 
compensatory storage on site to attenuate all storm events up to and including the 1 
in 100 chance in any year event, taking the effects of climate change into account; 
maintaining a 5 metre setback between all new development existing land drains 
and watercourses. 
 
 

6 Development shall not begin until a surface water drainage scheme for the site 
based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the hydrological and 
hydro geological context of the development, has been submitted to and approved 
by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details before the development is completed. 
 
 

7 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement in accordance with 
BS:5837:2005 (Trees in relation to construction) has been submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out 
only in accordance with the approved Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural 
Method Statement unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation. 
 
 

8 The mitigation and reasonable avoidance measures set out in the agreed water vole 
mitigation Statement shall be carried out in full. 
 
 

9 Details of the provision for bat boxes or tubes including the timing of their erection 
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and Agreed in writing prior to the 
commencement of development and the provision shall be made in accordance with 
the agreed details. 
 
 

Page 18



10 Prior to commencement of development a Phase One Reptile Survey and mitigation 
statement shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The agreed mitigation details shall be complied with in full. 
 
 

11 Details of any artificial lighting of the glasshouses together with details of any blinds 
to prevent light pollution shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and 
agreed in writing prior to installation. 
 
 

12 No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation 
of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of 
investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved in writing by 
the Planning Authority. 
 
 

13 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 3071/10, SK08 RevC, SK12, SK13, SK14, MW-STF-001-
05.11Rev,MW-STF-003-06.11 Rev A,  
SK15, SK17,   
 
 

14 Prior to commencement of development an earthworks method statement including 
a timetable for completion of each phase of the works shall be submitted to and 
agreed on writing by the Local Planning Authority, and the works shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved method statement unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

15 There shall be no importation of material on to the site to facilitate the land raising 
proposed, the development shall be completed by the cut and fill method only.  
 

 
 
And subject to the applicant first entering into a Legal Agreement under Section 106 within 
6 months of the date of this meeting to provide a) £3000 for the checking and monitoring of 
the Travel Plan and b) to ensure the removal of the glasshouses and the reinstatement of 
the land should the horticultural use of the glasshouses cease for in excess of 3 years. 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) 
 
Description of Site: 
 
 
Shottentons Farm is a holding of about 37 hectares located to the north east of Pecks Hill Nazeing 
and is accessed at the end of Pecks Hill where the road sweeps east into Sedge Green. There are 
existing buildings at the entrance to the site, which were originally part of a dairy farm, and are 
now used for storage in connection with the nursery.  The existing nursery consists of 1 large 
glasshouse of 3 hectares in area (Phase 1) and a second glasshouse of similar proportions is 
under construction (Phase 2). There is an existing reservoir to the south of the first glasshouse, 
constructed in connection with Phase 1. The red lined application site comprises about 20 

Page 19



hectares and is bounded to the west by the existing nursery buildings.  The site consists of several 
open fields, partly bounded by trees and hedgerows.  There is a Public Footpath (Footpath 4) 
which runs along the existing access road and runs eastwards through the site.  The site lies 
within an identified Glasshouse area and there are nurseries to the east and west of the 
application site. 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
 
The proposal is to construct 9.3 hectares of glass in two blocks (Phase 3, 3.1 hectares and phase 
4, 6.2 hectares), creation of a new reservoir in the northern corner of the site and two buffer tanks.  
The scheme includes provision of parking and servicing areas.  The proposed glasshouses are 6.8 
metres tall.  The existing Glasshouse is currently used for tomato production to supply a 
supermarket chain and it is intended that the new glasshouses would also be used for this 
purpose. 
 
The phase 3 glasshouse would involve the redistribution of soil within the site to create a level 
surface.  Given the slope of the site, this results in cutting in about a metre at the southern end and 
raising the ground level at the northern end by about 4 metres.  The glasshouse will be 224 metres 
in length consist of 56 x 4metre wide bays, which will run east to west with their gables facing east 
and west, and will be 140 metres in width.  A parking area for 6 cars and a lorry collection area is 
proposed which will be accessed from a new length of access road that runs between the phase 1 
and phase 2 glasshouses.  A service area is to be provided within the glasshouse which will 
include a packing room, boiler room and irrigation room. 
 
The Phase 4 Glasshouse has an area of 6.3 hectares and again involves redistribution of soil to 
create a level site.  The southern edge will be cut in by 3 metres whereas the western edge would 
be raised by 5 metres. It will be 424 metres in length (106 x 4 metre wide bays running 
approximately north south.  At its widest end to the east it will be 170 metres in width and at its 
eastern end 125 metres.  As in Phase 3, the glasshouse structure will also contain the service 
area with packing, irrigation and boiler rooms. A parking area for 6 cars and lorry loading area is 
proposed together with a short length of access road that links to the existing yard area.  
 
 
The reservoir would be constructed in the field at the north eastern end of the site and would have 
a capacity of 18,500 cubic metres. 
 
There are 175 trees within the application site and the proposals retain 153 of them.  To 
compensate for the loss of 22 trees, including some covered by a Tree Preservation Order 
A full landscaping scheme has been drawn up, which includes planting new hedgerows and trees 
within existing tree lines, thickening existing hedgerows and managing them for the future. 
 
The public footpath that runs through the site will not need to be diverted; the positions of the two 
phases have been designed to maintain the current path in a 40 metre wide gap between the 
glasshouses. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
  
EPF/0579/98 - Erection of horticultural Glasshouses (140m x 200m) with provision of hardstanding 
and alteration of existing vehicular access to Sedge Green/Pecks Hill – approved/conditions 
01/06/98 
EPF/1175/03 - Erection of glasshouses – approved/conditions 25/07/03 
EPF/1950/03 - Outline application for the erection of glasshouses, facilities building and extension 
to the despatch area – approved/conditions 31/08/05 

Page 20



EPF/1664/08 details of glasshouse, facilities building and extension to despatch area approved 
21/11/08. 
EPF/0665/11 Erection of 2.8 hectares of glasshousing (6.5m high) approved 15/06/11 Superseded 
by EPF/1111/11 below. 
EPF/1111/11 Erection of 3 hectares of glass and two rainwater silos.  Approved. (This is phase 2 
currently under construction) 
 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
PPG2 Green Belts 
PPS7 Sustainable Development in Rural Areas 
 
Adopted Local Plan and Local Plan Alterations: 
 
CP1 achieving sustainable development objectives 
CP2 Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment 
CP3 new Development 
CP4 Energy Conservation 
GB2A Green Belt 
GB7A conspicuous Development 
GB11 Agricultural Buildings 
NC3 replacement of lost habitat. 
NC4 Protection of Established Habitats 
RP5A Adverse environmental impacts 
E13A New and replacement glasshouses 
E13C Prevention of Dereliction of New Glasshouse Sites. 
U2A development in Flood Risk Areas 
DBE1 Design of new buildings 
DBE9 Loss of amenity 
LL1 Rural Landscape 
LL2 Inappropriate rural development 
LL4 Agriculture/forestry –related development 
LL7 Planting protection and care of trees 
LL9 Felling of preserved trees 
LL10 Adequacy of provision for landscape retention. 
LL11 Landscaping Schemes 
ST1 Location of Development 
ST4 Road safety 
ST6 vehicle parking 
RST3 Loss or diversion of Rights of Way 
 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
A site notice was erected at the entrance to the site and a press advert was placed as this is a 
major development. 14 neighbouring properties were consulted. 
The following representations were received: 
 
PARISH COUNCIL- The following objections were made: 
a) The development would increase the number of HGV’s using the roads within Nazeing.  The 
entrance to the nursery is on a sharp bend and could present issues with sight lines. 
b) There is a safety issue with vehicles crossing Footpath 4. If the District Council is minded to 
grant permission, the proposal from Nazeing Footpaths group to remove the footpath on the 

Page 21



applicants land with a new footpath running north to south between footpaths 28 and 3 should be 
considered. 
c) Although this is an E13 Area the levelling of the land would make the restitution of the land to its 
original use impossible. 
d) The large modern glasshouses could reduce the opportunities for employment and may bring 
about the dereliction of smaller nurseries in the area. 
e) Any further enlargement of glasshouses should be in conjunction with adequate road 
infrastructure. 
f) If the District Council is minded to grant permission then a condition seeking clearance and 
restoration of the land be supported by an appropriate index-linked performance bond be sought 
from the applicant (prevention of dereliction of new glasshouse sites Policy E13C of the adopted 
Local Plan and Amendments)  
g) Also suitable S106 should be sought. 
 
OPEN SPACE SOCIETY- Objects most strongly.  The proposals will have a serious adverse 
impact on people’s safety as a result of vehicles crossing footpath 4.  We consider the 
development is contrary to the public interest and urge you to reject the application. 
 
LANGRIDGE FARM - PAYNES LANE – Object Access and egress are on sharp bend at the 
bottom of the hill.  This will be overdevelopment; new glasshouses were erected very recently.  
Road network is not fit for purpose.  Adverse impact on residential properties as this business runs 
24 hours a day seven days a week, making life a nightmare for residents of Nazeing. 
 
LEE VALLEY REGIONAL PARK AUTHORITY – The Authority raises no material consideration 
regarding the proposed application. 
 
13 SHOOTERS DRIVE on behalf or NAZEING FOOTPATHS GROUP – Concerns about impact 
on Footpath 4, likely to become obstructed and enforcement is ineffectual, also concerned about 
safety of walkers as the path is likely to be crossed by loaders forklifts and lorries. Land either side 
of the path will be raised considerably so walkers will be dominated by structures nearly 10 metres 
above the level of the path.  The loss of the element of footpath 4 that crosses the applicants land 
would not be a major loss to walkers and could be extinguished, but we would want to see a new 
route running north south on the eastern edge of the site between footpaths 28 and 3 linking up to 
a shortened FP4, for walkers such a route would be a real improvement to the network.  It would 
increase flexibility for the applicant about siting and layout and the safety risk would be eliminated. 
 
1 CHURCH CLOSE, LOUGHTON, on behalf of ESSEX AREA RAMBLERS – Footpath 4 crosses 
the site, but appears not to be obstructed, but ensuring continued access through such sits can be 
difficult. Therefore if Council is minded to grant then enforceable conditions requiring no 
obstruction of the path during development and following completion and improvement of the 
surface of the path to prevent it becoming overgrown, should be added. 
 
 
Issues and Considerations:  
 
The site is within an identified Glasshouse Area within the Green Belt,  
 
Policy E13 of the adopted Local Plan, identified those areas of the District in which it is considered 
appropriate to allow glasshouse development, this was to prevent the spread of glasshouses 
outside the traditional glasshouse areas of the District whilst enabling this important food 
production industry to continue to thrive in the area.  In principle therefore this expansion of an 
existing nursery within this E13 Glasshouse Area is acceptable. The main issues therefore relate 
to the impact of the proposed development on the landscape, the public footpaths, impact on 
nature conservation and biodiversity, traffic impact, residential amenity, flood risk, sustainability 
and employment. 

Page 22



 
Landscape.  
The site is within the Metropolitan Green Belt but the development is required for agricultural 
purposes and is therefore appropriate development, in addition the site has been specifically 
identified in the adopted Local Plan as suitable for the development of glasshouses and lies 
between two established glasshouse developments.  The land however is not level and for modern 
glasshouse development level land is required, the development therefore necessitates the 
levelling of the land which in this case involves significant cut and fill which results in parts of the 
site being raised up to a maximum of 5 metres above existing land level.  There is no importation 
of material to achieve this, it is purely cut and fill. Whilst the development is massive and will be 
visible from vantage points, in this location between established nurseries it is not considered that 
its impact ion the landscape is unacceptable.  The Preserved trees that are to be lost in the centre 
of the site, had been compromised by previous land raising (which was carried out without consent 
by the previous owner of the land, and they currently lie in a dip, The development of the site for 
glasshousing in accordance with the E13 designation would leave these trees surrounded by 
glasshousing and of little public amenity value, in this instance it is considered that their loss can 
be justified subject to increased planting around the perimeter of the site that will be of greater 
public amenity value.  The preserved trees adjacent to the public footpath are being retained. 
Subject to the provision of the landscaping scheme set out in the application, to be provided in 
phases as the development progresses, the proposals are considered acceptable in landscape 
terms. 
 
Public Footpath 
Footpath 4 crosses the site from west to east and is accessed via the existing vehicular access.  
The intention is to retain the footpath and although it will run in a dip between the two proposed 
glasshouses, it is within a 40 metre wide strip, not a narrow chasm and whilst it is accepted that 
this may reduce the enjoyment of walkers utilising the path to some extent, it will not make the 
path unusable.  There is a requirement in law, not to obstruct public rights of way and it is not 
necessary or appropriate therefore to condition this.  Whilst the Nazeing Footpath Group has 
suggested the closure of this path and the creation of a new path heading north, this is not the 
proposal that is before us.  Such closure and creation of a new footpath would need to be the 
subject of a closure or diversion order.  If carried out under the planning acts, such an application 
can only be processed if the diversion is required as a result of a planning approval, and it is then 
the subject of a separate public consultation exercise.  If contested the proposal could end at 
Public Inquiry, and is therefore potentially a particularly lengthy process.  The applicant has agreed 
that he would be willing to support the suggested alternative route, but at this stage wishes the 
current application to be determined on its merits.  Whilst the Footpath group have implied that 
footpath 4 is not needed, there is no guarantee that the loss of the footpath would be found to be 
acceptable.  The application must be determined in its present form.  Policy RST3 states that the 
Council will not grant planning permission for development proposals which entail the loss, 
stopping up or unreasonable diversion of public rights of way.  This application is in accordance 
with that policy, whereas the alternative suggested by the Footpath Group would be contrary to it. 
 
Concern has been expressed with regard to the safety of walkers using Footpath 4, but the path is 
already crossed by the access road and it is not considered that this proposal will create greater 
hazard for walkers. 
  
Nature Conservation and Biodiversity. 
The application was accompanied by a phase 1 habitat survey and by bat emergence survey and 
water vole survey and mitigation.  The mature trees on the site present good quality habitat for 
bats and bat roots were found, the ditches at the site were found to be suitable for water voles, 
although no animals were found at the site.  The council’s Countryside manager has assessed the 
information provided and finds it robust and is happy that the proposed safeguards and mitigations 
are appropriate and as such it is not considered that the development will have an adverse impact 
on protected species or the biodiversity of the area. 

Page 23



 
Traffic Impact. 
A transport statement was submitted with the application which provides information regarding 
previous and expected traffic movements with regard to this site.  Prior to the purchase of the site 
by Glinwell plc in 2010 the site had been operated by Kinglea Plants for growing bedding plants 
both within the glasshouse and externally over 3 hectares, they also pooled plants from up to 4 
local nurseries prior to wholesale dispatch and imported and dispatched plants, pots and other 
garden items bought in from other UK nurseries to garden centres and supermarkets.  The 
applicants through correspondence with the previous owners of the site have established that the 
site required a large number of staff and that 90 arrived and departed by car  each day and that 29 
deliveries took place by HGV daily in the peak season, dropping to 19 in the off peak season. 
Having checked the planning history this corresponds with the figures quoted when application 
EPF/1950/03 was considered, and these themselves were a reduction on earlier levels.  
 
The current operation by Tomworld generally has 10 full time staff on site, supplemented by 10 
pickers in the peak season which lasts 22 weeks.  Each day a small rigid HGV collects the 
tomatoes for dispatch.  In addition some deliveries to the site are made from the head office by 
car, with a delivery by van roughly once a week. 
The applicants have provided information based on their current knowledge, about predicted traffic 
generation from the development of the site.  This indicates that when all 4 phases are in 
operation there are likely to be 90 permanent staff plus 60 pickers at peak times with 68 daily car 
arrivals and departures and 1 HGV collection a day with a large articulated lorry or two rigid 
vehicle collections.  It is concluded therefore that the development will generate lower numbers of 
vehicle movements when completed than the vehicle movements experienced under the previous 
ownership, and with only a fraction of the previous HGV movements.  The maximum morning peak 
hour movements are substantially smaller with just 15 arrivals compared to 64 under the previous 
ownership.   
 
The applicants have submitted a framework travel plan with the objective of reducing car 
movements by increasing car sharing, public transport use and walking and cycling.  A condition 
requiring a detailed travel plan to be submitted and adhered to can be required, and monitored to 
ensure compliance.  The monitoring is carried out by Essex County Council and the cost of this 
can be required by a legal agreement under Section 106. 
 
The site currently operates with separate in and out accesses and although these are located at a 
sharp bend in the road sight lines from the exit are in excess of 190 metres.  The intention is to 
maintain this in out arrangement. 
 
Essex County Highways officers have concluded that the applicant has demonstrated that the 
vehicle movements associated with the proposal will be less than the previous use generated.  By 
definition less movement through the accesses means that the development will be safer in 
highway terms.  Accident data has been investigated at this location and there have been no 
recorded incidents in the last 3 years.  The proposal will therefore have no detrimental impact on 
highway safety, efficiency or capacity at this location. 
 
Residential Amenity 
The proposed glasshouses and parking areas are set well away from any residential properties, so 
the only likely impact on residential amenity would be from increased traffic movements in the 
vicinity, which are a long standing concern in Nazeing where there are a large number of 
businesses which generate significant HGV traffic.  However, whilst the development will result in 
an increase in traffic over the current level of use, figures have been provided as explained above, 
that indicate that the use will not generate as much traffic as the previous use of the site by 
Kinglea, and that the increase in HGV movements over the existing level will be very minor.  As 
such it is not considered that the proposal will result in excessive harm to residential amenity. 
    

Page 24



Flood Risk 
A flood risk assessment was submitted with the planning application because of the scale of the 
development. The Environment Agency as a result have raised no objection to the proposal 
subject to the imposition of conditions to ensure that the mitigation measures set out in the 
Assessment are carried out..  these will ensure that the surface water run off rates for all storm 
events equate to  normal Greenfield rates so that there will be no increased risk of flooding as a 
result of the development. 
 
Sustainability 
The site is relatively well located in relation to centres of population and current employees are 
relatively local.  The development will provide economies of scale and provide increased UK 
tomato production, helping reduce reliance on imported food. The design of the development is 
intended to help maximise production with least energy use.  As such the development is 
considered to be in accordance with the sustainability policies of the local plan. 
 
 Employment 
This is a successful business that is a local employer, the proposals will enable the consolidation 
and expansion of the business creating increased employment opportunities The Governments 
Draft Planning Policy Framework states that “significant weight should be placed on the need to 
support economic growth through the planning system” and this is a material consideration in the 
determination of this application. 
 
Other issues 
The Parish Council have raised concern regarding the future of the site should the business 
cease, as dereliction and inappropriate uses of disused nursery sites has been a problem 
historically in the area.  Policy E13 states that the Council will require that these sites are fully 
returned to a condition appropriate for their previous use when the land is nolonger used for 
glasshouse horticulture.  To achieve this, a legal agreement is required that would secure the 
removal of the glasshouses and the reinstatement of the land should the glasshouses be disused. 
Given the scale of the development and potential difficulties in finding a buyer for such a large 
scale development, officers consider that the agreement should allow a reasonable length of time 
before requiring demolition.  In this instance therefore it is suggested that the legal agreement 
should require demolition and reinstatement of the land if the glasshouses cease to be used for 
horticultural purposes for in excess of 3 years.  This allows adequate time for marketing and 
negotiation, whilst not being so long that the glasshouses would become derelict or unsightly. 
 
Conclusion 
 
In conclusion it is considered that the development is in accordance with the adopted policies of 
the Local Plan and Local Plan Alterations and will provide increased employment opportunities 
and economic growth to the benefit of the area without causing undue harm to the character or 
amenity of the rural area.  The application is therefore recommended for approval subject to the 
suggested 106 agreement and conditions. 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Jill Shingler 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564106 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 

Page 25



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

P a t h  ( u m )

T r a c k

Lowershott Nursery

P a t h  ( u m )

T r a c k

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee West 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

1 
Application Number: EPF/2338/11 
Site Name: Shottentons Farm, Pecks Hill, 

Nazeing, EN9 2NY 
Scale of Plot: 1/5000 

Page 26



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2438/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 6 The Mead  

Nazeing New Road 
Nazeing 
Essex 
EN10 6SS 
 

PARISH: Nazeing 
 

WARD: Lower Nazeing 
 

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Galizia 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing and proposed new 4 bed dwelling. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION:  Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=533242 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 765 008, 765 009J, 765 011B, 765 012B, H8415/01 Rev: D, 
H8415/10 Rev: F 
 

3 No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary 
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the 
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such approved details. 
 
 

4 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
openings in the first floor flank elevations shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass 
and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which 
the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition. 
 
 

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 1, Class A, B and D shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 

Page 27



6 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 
 

7 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement in accordance with 
BS:5837:2005 (Trees in relation to construction) has been submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out 
only in accordance with the approved Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural 
Method Statement unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation. 
 
 

8 The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first 
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the 
parking of residents and visitors vehicles. 
 
 

9 No development shall take place until details of a satisfactory ground gas 
investigation and risk assessment has been carried out and submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for approval in order to determine what if any ground gas 
remediation measures may be required or shall specify appropriate ground gas 
mitigation measures to be installed in the building(s) in lieu of any ground gas 
investigation.  
 
The investigations, risk assessment and remediation methods, including remedial 
mitigation measures to be installed in lieu of investigation, shall be carried out or 
assessed in accordance with the guidance contained in BS 9485:2007 "Code of 
practice for the Characterisation and Remediation from Ground Gas in Affected 
Developments." Should the ground gas mitigation measures be installed, it is the 
responsibility of the developer to ensure that any mitigation measures are suitably 
maintained or to pass on this responsibility should ownership or responsibility for the 
buildings be transferred. 
 
 

10 No development shall take place until details of levels have been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing cross-sections and elevations of 
the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor 
slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details. 

Page 28



 

12 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) dated 14/02/12 ref: H8415 Rev: C, and the 
following mitigation measures as detailed within the FRA: 
- Provision of compensatory flood storage for all events up to and including the 1 in 
100 year flood event (with an appropriate allowance for climate change) through the 
use of voids underneath the building as shown on drawing ref: H8415/01 Rev: D. 
- Maintaining a flood flow route between No. 5 and No. 6 as shown on drawing ref: 
H8415/01 Rev: D. 
- Finished floor levels are set no lower than 25.09m above Ordnance Datum (AOD). 
 
 

13 The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until such a time as a 
scheme for regular maintenance of the steel grates to ensure they are free from 
debris and rubbish has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The scheme shall be fully implemented and subsequently 
maintained in accordance with the agreed scheme, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) and since it is for a type of development that cannot be determined by Officers if 
more than two objections material to the planning merits of the proposal to be approved are 
received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council 
function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(f).) 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Revised application for the demolition of the existing dwelling and erection of a new four bed 
property. The proposed new two storey dwelling would be a maximum of 7m in width and 11.7m in 
depth at first floor level with a pitched roof to a ridge height of 7.75m. The proposed dwelling would 
also incorporate a single storey rear/side projection. The rear projection would extend a maximum 
of 2.8m beyond the first floor rear wall and would stretch to a width of 8.5m. It would have a 
pitched roof to a maximum height of 4.5m and would extend 3.5m down the side (in front of the 
first floor rear wall). This would bring the front wall of the proposed single storey side projection 
roughly in line with the front wall of the neighbours ‘store’. The proposed development would 
include a new pedestrian access to the north of the existing vehicle/pedestrian access, which 
would be raised to ensure it is level with the height of Nazeing New Road. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The site is a detached two bed dwelling with the first floor located within the roof area and is 
located on the eastern side of Nazeing New Road in a small linear enclave of 12 dwellings. Whilst 
relatively isolated this row of houses, and the Nazeing Glassworks to the rear, are not located 
within the Green Belt. The site is however located within Environment Agency Floodzones 2 and 3. 
 

Page 29



The existing dwelling is approximately 5.5m in width and 7.5m in depth, with an additional 3m 
deep single storey rear addition and reaches 7.4m in height. The dwelling is identical to the 
property to the north (No. 5) and the two to the south (No’s. 7 and 8). 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/2644/10 - Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of replacement 4 bed dwelling – 
refused 28/02/11 (appeal dismissed 01/07/11) 
EPF/0852/11 - Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of a 4 bed dwelling (revised 
application) – refused 06/07/11 
EPF/1634/11 - Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of new four bed dwelling – refused 
30/09/11 (currently being considered on appeal) 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 
CP3 – New Development 
CP7 – Urban Form and Quality 
DBE1 – Design of New Buildings 
DBE2 – Effect on Neighbouring Properties 
DBE9 – Loss of Amenity 
ST6 – Vehicle Parking 
LL10 – Adequacy of Provision for Landscape Retention 
U2A – Development in Flood Risk Areas 
U3A – Catchment Effects 
 
Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received: 
 
8 neighbouring properties were consulted. No Site Notice was required. A further consultation was 
undertaken with regards to amended/additional information. 
 
PARISH COUNCIL – Object. Planning applications in respect of this property have been refused in 
the past as overbearing and detrimental to the character and appearance of the street scene and 
loss of amenities to neighbouring properties. One application is currently the subject of appeal. 
The plans are inaccurate and the proposed dwelling house is bigger than previously refused 
applications and the flood level datums are different to the Environment Agency (comments 
unchanged regarding amended/addition plans/info). 
 
5 THE MEAD – Object as this would be more harmful than the previous application. This has 
increased the width and depth of the proposed dwelling over the previous scheme, has removed 
the set back from the boundary with No. 7, and would still threaten the amenities of neighbours 
and the nearby Willow tree. Also still consider the flood level datum shown is incorrect, to which 
the EA’s are more accurate. Re: additional plans/info – Development is still too big for the plot, 
still impacts on neighbours amenities, would still impact on the tree and still has an insufficient 
FRA. 
 
7 THE MEAD – Object as this would impact on neighbours amenities, would be out of character, 
and due to possible flooding/drainage issues. 
 
11 THE MEAD – Object as this is too large for its surroundings and due to possible 
flooding/drainage issues. 
 
LANGRIDGE FARM, PAYNES LANE – Object as this development has been refused twice and 
again twice on appeal, the application is bigger than the previous ones, and as the plans are 
inaccurate and misleading. 

Page 30



 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues in this application would be the design and impact on the street scene, amenity 
considerations, potential flood risk issues, and impact on the neighbours tree. The three previous 
applications were refused on the following grounds: 
 

1. The proposed development, due to its bulk and overall scale, would be overbearing and 
detrimental to the character and appearance of street scene, contrary to policy DBE1 of the 
adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 
2. The proposed development, due to its bulk, scale and proximity to neighbouring 
properties, would result in a detrimental loss of amenities to the neighbouring residents, 
contrary to policies DBE2 and DBE9 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
The first application (EPF/2644/10) was also refused due to potential impact on the neighbours 
tree and inaccurate plans. 
 
Much issue has been raised with regards to the accuracy of plans and information received, and 
amended/additional plans and information has been submitted to address these issues. 
Furthermore, the Local Planning Authority has checked all measurements on site and conclude 
that the latest amended plan received on 09/02/12 (Plan Ref: 765 009J) is accurate and all 
measurements shown on here are correct. Furthermore, the location and size of the neighbours 
Willow Tree has been accurately shown on the amended Tree Survey (Revision: B) and the 
correct flood level datum has now been shown and assessed under the amended Flood Risk 
Assessment (Revision: C). As such, it is considered that all plans and information now received 
and assessed is correct and adequate for a decision to be made on the proposal. 
 
Design/neighbour amenities (previous reasons for refusal): 
 
To overcome the two previous reasons for refusal, the applicant has removed the previously 
proposed garage that would have been located on the shared boundary with No. 7, directly outside 
their side kitchen window. Furthermore the ridge height of the proposed new dwelling has been 
reduced by 250mm (7.75m rather than 8m) and the eaves height has been reduced by 500mm 
(4.9m rather than 5.4m), which has resulted in the first floor windows being partially set into the 
roof and has reduced the overall height and bulk of the proposed new dwelling. This reduced 
height has ensured that the ridge height of the proposed new dwelling would be an acceptable 
600mm above the neighbours ridge height, and the eaves height would sit lower than the midway 
eaves of the neighbours mansard roof. The other alteration to the proposed dwelling is the 
breaking up of the side roof planes to create more visual interest and reduce the previous large 
expanse of roof. 
 
The previous appeal decision regarding EPF/2644/10 stated that “the appeal site lies within a 
distinct row of four residential properties of similar mansard roof design. From my observations, 
this group of small dwellings, due to their design and scale, make a positive contribution as a 
group to the character and appearance of the street scene. In addition, the character of the street 
scene is enhanced by the regular gaps between these buildings”. Whilst the rear single storey 
section of the new dwelling would be built within 1.3m of the boundary on one side and up to the 
boundary on the other, this is set back 8.1m from the front of the dwelling and would be single 
storey. Furthermore the visible part (that on the southern portion of the site) would replace an 
existing single storey detached garage of roughly the same footprint. The main two storey dwelling 
would be located 1.25m from the shared boundary with No. 5 and 2.6m from the boundary with 
No. 7, which would be sufficient visual gaps to retain the open nature of this street scene. 
 

Page 31



Whilst the proposed development is located closer to the site boundaries and is still higher than 
the existing dwelling on this site, and both neighbouring properties have flank windows overlooking 
this site, it is considered that the reduced eaves height (which is the most harmful aspect of such a 
dwelling) is a sufficient height and distance to ensure there is no detrimental impact on the 
neighbours ground floor side windows. 
 
All the above factors taken together result in a dwelling more modest in scale (when viewed from 
the street scene) that would not be unduly detrimental to the neighbours amenities. Whilst the two 
storey rear element extends beyond the neighbours first floor rear walls, the 3.5m and 4.5m 
distances would ensure that there would be no undue loss of light or outlook resulting from this. 
The proposed single storey rear/side protrusion would not extend beyond the detached outbuilding 
at No. 5 and would replace an existing detached garage at No. 6, which itself is built on the shared 
boundary. As such this element would have no greater impact on neighbours amenities than the 
existing situation. The only proposed first floor flank windows would serve bathrooms and, as 
such, can be conditioned to be obscure glazed. Therefore there would be no harmful loss of 
privacy to the neighbouring residents. 
 
Flooding: 
 
As previously stated, the submitted Flood Risk Assessment has been amended to take into 
account information raised by a neighbour with regards to flood level datum. The amended FRA 
has been assessed by the Environment Agency and there is now no objection with regards to 
potential flood risk, subject to relevant conditions. The proposed finished floor levels indicated 
within the FRA match up with the elevational drawings submitted, so the finished floor level (and 
therefore overall height) of the development would be unchanged to that shown on the drawings. 
 
Impact on neighbouring tree: 
 
There have been several revisions and amendments to the plans with regards to the neighbouring 
Willow Tree, and the original Tree Survey failed to take into account the full Root Protection Zone 
of the tree. However these issues have been resolved and a Tree Survey has been submitted that 
is accurate enough to fully assess the impact on this tree. The proposed development would 
encroach into the RPZ of the neighbours tree, however it is proposed that the corner of the single 
storey protrusion that encroaches would be set on a cantilevered ground beam which, due to the 
change in levels and higher finished floor level required by the FRA, could be constructed within 
the no dig zone without the need for ground disturbance. As such, and subject to relevant tree 
protection conditions, the development could be constructed without undue harm to the health and 
wellbeing of the neighbours tree. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The reduced ridge and eaves height, removal of the single storey garage, and amended roof 
design are considered sufficient to overcome the previous reasons for refusal. As such, the 
proposed development is considered to not have an undue detrimental impact on the character 
and appearance of the street scene and the amenities of neighbouring residents. The plans have 
been checked on site and the plans and submitted information have been amended to reflect the 
findings of the LPA and the information raised by neighbouring residents. Based on this amended 
information, it is considered that the proposed development can be constructed without having a 
detrimental impact on the neighbours tree and without resulting in any increased flood risk, subject 
to suitable conditions. As such the development would now comply with the relevant Local Plan 
policies and is therefore recommended for approval. 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 

Page 33



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

25.9m

25.0m

25.9m

25.0m

Rushymead

T a n k s

T a n k sWorks

5

11

T he M
ead

8

1 2

Rushymead

5

11

T he M
ead

8

1 2

T a n k s

Works

T a n k s

D r ai n
D r ai n

El Sub Sta

Nazeing Mead

El Sub Sta

Nazeing Mead

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee West 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

2 
Application Number: EPF/2438/11 
Site Name: 6 The Mead, Nazeing New Road, 

Nazeing, EN10 6SS 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 34



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0046/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Kingsmead School 

Epping Road 
Roydon 
Essex 
CM19 5HU 
 

PARISH: Roydon 
 

WARD: Roydon 
 

APPLICANT: Ms C Buckingham-Hack 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Variation of condition 6 of planning permission EPF/1053/09 
(Change of use from office to non-residential school) to allow 
for a maximum of 60 pupils to be on the school register at any 
time. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=534142 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 

1 No more than 60 pupils shall be on the school role at any time and no more than 30 
members of staff shall be employed on site, unless otherwise submitted and agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

2 Prior to the erection of any screen walls, fences, gates or such similar structures, 
details shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
and shall be erected and maintained to the agreed detailing and positions. 
. 

3 The premises shall be used solely for a non-residential school and for no other 
purpose (including any other purpose in Class D1 of the Schedule to the Town and 
Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987, or in any provision equivalent to that 
class in any Statutory Instrument revoking or re-enacting that order. 
 

4 The school hereby permitted shall be open to students only during the hours of 
08.30 to 22.00 on Monday to Friday during term time and not at all at weekends and 
outside term times. 
 

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order1995 (as amended) no development generally 
permitted by virtue of Part 32 Class A shall be undertaken without the prior written 
permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

 

Page 35



 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is for a type of development that cannot be 
determined by Officers if more than two objections material to the planning merits of the proposal 
to be approved are received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – 
Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(f).) 
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
Consent is being sought for the variation of condition 6 of EPF/1053/09 (Change of use of office to 
non-residential school). The existing condition reads: 
 
 No more than 30 pupils shall be on the school role at any time. 
 

Reason:  The application has been assessed on the submitted information on the 
basis of approximately 27 students.  However there is space within the building to 
potentially accommodate more.  Traffic, noise, parking and sustainability issues 
would need to be reassessed if more pupils were to attend. 

 
The proposed variation would allow for up to 60 pupils to be on the school register at any one 
time. 
 
Description of Site:  
 
The application property is a detached two-storey building with rooms in the roof space. The 
building was previously used as a school, then for office purposes, and consent was then granted 
for residential use before being approved and converted back into a school. The site is accessed 
by a road which enters onto the east side of Epping Road, south of Kingsmead Close, and falls 
within the Metropolitan Green Belt. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPR/0271/67 - Use of school as data processing management and computer training centre – 
refused 12/09/67 
EPR/0389/70 - Change of use – approved/conditions 08/09/70 
EPR/0236/71 - Change of use – approved/conditions 08/06/71 
EPO/0131/72 - Conversion of premises to 8 flats and erection of 8 garages – approved/conditions 
13/06/72 
EPO/0162/72 - Use of premises as offices/conference centre/laboratory/staff recreation/visitors 
accommodation and caretakers flat – allowed on appeal 15/11/74 
EPF/1620/80 - External staircase between first and second floors of existing offices – 
approved/conditions 05/12/80 
EPF/1014/81 - Extension of office car parking – approved/conditions 07/09/81 
EPF/0699/89 - Three storey extension and ancillary parking – approved 26/06/89 
EPF/0091/90 - Two storey extension together with ancillary parking – refused 20/04/90 
EPF/1209/05 - Change of use from offices to a boarding school for approximately 100 pupils – 
withdrawn 07/09/05  

Page 36



EPF/0137/07 - Change of use of existing offices to 9 flats involving external alterations and 
extensions. Extension to existing building to create 3 houses and erection of detached carports – 
refused 20/04/07 (appeal dismissed 01/10/07) 
EPF/1576/07 - Change of use of existing offices to 9 flats involving external alterations – refused 
21/09/07 
EPF/2145/07 - Change of use of existing offices to 9 flats involving external alterations – 
approved/conditions 24/01/08 
EPF/0449/09 - Change of use of vacant office space to single residential dwelling and removal of 
fire escape – approved/conditions 12/05/09 
EPF/1053/09 - Change of use from offices to non-residential school - (D1 use) – 
approved/conditions 20/08/09 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt  
GB8A – Change of Use or Adaptation of Buildings 
RP5A – Adverse Environmental Impacts 
ST4 – Road Safety 
ST6 – Vehicle Parking 
DBE9 – Loss of Amenity 
 
Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations received: 
 
13 neighbours were consulted on this application. No Site Notice was required. 
 
PARISH COUNCIL – No objection. 
 
REGENTS HOUSE, EPPING ROAD – Object as there is a question as to whether the school 
would be sufficient for 60 students, due to highway and traffic concerns, the lack of pedestrian 
access to the site, and due to the impact on the local services. 
 
KINGSMEAD LODGE, EPPING ROAD – Object due to highway safety concerns. 
 
ALVAND, EPPING ROAD – Object due to highway safety and traffic concerns, parking and the 
resulting impact on surrounding residents. 
 
BARDWELLS, EPPING ROAD – Comment that the development may impact on local services 
and there are serious highway concerns. 
 
Issues and Considerations:  
  
The issues for consideration are the impact that the increased number of students would have on 
the Metropolitan Green Belt, highways, and on neighbouring residents. 
 

Page 37



It was previously put forward in 2009 (regarding EPF/1053/09) that the proposed school would 
serve some 27 students ranging in age from 11 to 17 that would have special educational needs. 
These would be catered for by 10 members of full-time staff and 2 members of part-time staff. 
 
The applicants propose to increase the number of students to no more than 60, which would be 
served by 24 members of staff. It is proposed that all students would arrive and depart by shared 
mini cabs that are provided by Essex County Council, which is the current situation at the three 
other Essex Schools operated by the applicant. 
 
The access to the site would be via the existing access road served by a vehicle crossover on 
Epping Road. Whilst it is acknowledged that this existing access is less than ideal, the access is in 
place and has served the site (and the various uses undertaken at the site) for a number of years. 
The previous office use is estimated to have generated (at full capacity) up to 100 vehicle 
movements a day given its inaccessible location, and the vehicle movements would likely have 
coincided with the traditional peak times on the highway network (07:30 – 09:30 and 16:30 – 
18:30). 
 
The current use of the site has consent for unrestricted staff numbers and a maximum of 30 pupils, 
which is currently operating with no detriment to the highway network or safety and which does not 
appear to coincide with the evening peak on the highway network (although there would be some 
overlap with the morning peak). The accident data at this location for the last 3 years has been 
investigated by Essex County Council Highways Officers and there are no recorded accidents at 
the access, or in the surrounding area, that can be attributed to the use of this site. 
 
Due to the above, it is considered by Essex County Council that an increase to a maximum of 60 
pupils including associated staff (which could also be restricted in number) would not generate any 
more traffic than the previous office use. Furthermore, the applicant states that all students would 
be dropped off and picked up by shared mini-cabs organised by Essex County Council, which 
would significantly reduce the level of traffic movements resulting from the proposal and would 
produce less traffic than the existing school. However it would be difficult to restrict and enforce 
this by condition. 
 
Concern has been raised by neighbouring residents with regards to the lack of pedestrian access 
to the site. Given the lack of public transport and local facilities it is not predicted that there would 
be large numbers of pedestrian movements to and from the site, as the majority of students and 
staff would likely arrive by car. As such, the lack of pedestrian access in this location is not 
considered grounds for refusing planning permission, particularly as this is an existing situation 
with the current facility. 
 
There is more than sufficient space on site for vehicle parking, which has been used as such for 
several years (particularly when the building was fully occupied for office use). The vehicle parking 
standards in relation to schools and educational facilities is somewhat vague as it gives a ‘general 
guide’ rather than actual requirements. The suggested parking provision for all schools is 1 parking 
space for every 2 members of daytime teaching staff, and for further/higher education the 
standards suggest 1 space for every 15 students. The large areas of hardstanding situated to the 
west of the building would be more than adequate to allow for drop off and pick up points, and 
could also serve a school transportation bus should one be employed. 
 

Page 38



The application site is located behind residential dwellings on Epping Road, with the building itself 
being a considerable distance from the shared boundaries. Given the use of the site as a school, 
any noise and movement resulting from the site would be during the day at times when less 
neighbouring residents would be around, and would not be unduly detrimental given the (still) low 
number of students attending the school. Therefore the increase from a maximum of 30 students 
to 60 students would not be unduly harmful to the amenities of neighbouring residents. 
 
The increase in the number of students would not have any further impact on the Green Belt over 
and above the original consent. However it is essential that a restriction to the number of students 
is still placed on the site to ensure it cannot be used as a fully functioning school catering for 
significantly more students than hereby proposed without prior consent from the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Conclusions: 
 
Given the previous uses of the site it is considered that the increase in the maximum number of 
students attending the school would not be any more harmful to highway safety, traffic 
movements, parking, or neighbouring residents than the existing or previous uses of the site. 
Therefore the proposal complies with the relevant Local Plan policies and is recommended for 
approval subject to the following variation: 
 

No more than 60 pupils shall be on the school role at any time and no more than 30 
members of staff shall be employed on site, unless otherwise submitted and agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason:  The application has been assessed on the submitted information on the 
basis of approximately 60 students and 24 members of staff.  However there is 
space within the building to potentially accommodate more. Traffic, noise, parking 
and sustainability issues would need to be reassessed if more pupils were to attend. 

 
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

68.6m

66.8m

68.6m

66.8m

54.9m

61.9m

54.9m

61.9m

Pavilion

Cottage
Lightfoot

F a r m
 Co t t s

Cornwood

Woodlands

Alvand

Kingsmead

Elmbank

O r c h
a r d  

D r i v
e

Regents

The Firs

Lodge

Kingsview

Kingsmead
House

East

Mor

Red Roofs
Cymru

Chy-

Applewood

Riding

Orchard Cottage

Oaklea

Appleby

100

Threeways

1

Bothways

9

Bardwells

1 a

1 3
5

1

Lunga

Leigh

H i g h b
a n k

House

Cottage

We b l a n
d s

Barford

Littlemore

El Sub Sta

Crossways

88

R e st h a r r o w

7

6

12

9 9

1

L e y s  C
r o f t

B e e
c h w

o o d

B ul l

R a i n b
o w

C o t t a g
e

H o u
s eH i l l  

V i e w

2 0

1 6

Pavilion

Woodlands

Orchard Cottage

Kingsmead

Elmbank

9

The Firs

O r c h
a r d  

D r i v
e

5

Regents

Lodge

Kingsview

Cornwood

Kingsmead

Alvand

House

East

Mor

Cymru

Appleby

Chy-

Applewood

Oaklea

Riding

Red Roofs

Barford

Oaklands

Littlemore

100

Crossways

Threeways

Oaklands

7

12

1 a

1 3

1 6

1

1

El Sub Sta

6

9 9

88

1

R e st h a r r o w

House

Cottage
Lightfoot

H i g h b
a n k

Lunga
We b l a n

d s

Cottage
Leigh

Bothways

H o u
s e

Bardwells

B e e
c h w

o o d

H i l l  
V i e w

2 0

L e y s  C
r o f t

B ul l

R a i n b
o w

C o t t a g
e

F a r m
 Co t t s

W O O D R E D O N  C L

L O
W
 H
I L
L  
R O

A D

W O O D R E D O N  C L

L O
W
 H
I L
L  
R O

A D

E P P I NG R OA D

K I N
G S
M E

A D
 C L

O S
E

K I N
G S
M E

A D
 C L

O S
E

E P P I NG R OA D

Playground

Po s ts

Courts
Tennis

LB

T r a c kT r a c k

Tennis

Po s ts

Courts

LB

Playground

Kingsmead HillKingsmead Hill

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee West 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

3 
Application Number: EPF/0046/12 
Site Name: Kingsmead School, Epping Road, 

Roydon, CM19 5HU 
Scale of Plot: 1/2500 

Page 40



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0144/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Haslingfield 

Meadgate Road  
Carthegena Estate 
Nazeing 
Essex 
EN10 6TA 
 

PARISH: Nazeing 
 

WARD: Lower Nazeing 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Miley Connors  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Part retrospective change of use from use as a single dwelling 
to a mixed use of single dwelling and residential caravan site 
for an extended gypsy family with 4 Caravans. (2 for 
independent living and two as ancillary accommodation to the 
dwelling) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=534567 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 

1 The mixed use of the site as a single dwelling and residential caravan site for an 
extended gypsy family with 4 caravans hereby permitted shall be carried on only by 
Miley and Kathleen Connors, Patrick and Margaret Connors, Miley (Senior) and 
Mary Connors, Margaret Murphy and their resident dependants, and shall be for a 
limited period ending in January 2017, or at such time the premises are no longer 
occupied by the persons named above, whichever is the shorter. 
 
 

2 When the land ceases to be occupied by those named in condition 1 above, or at 
the end of January 2017, whichever shall first occur, the use hereby permitted shall 
cease and all non-ancillary caravans, buildings, structures, materials and equipment 
brought on to the land, or works undertaken to it in connection with the use shall be 
removed and the land restored to its condition before the development took place. 
 

3 No more than 4 caravans, as defined in the Caravan Sites and Control of 
Development Act 1960 and the Caravan Sites Act 1968 shall be stationed on the 
site at any time, 2 of which shall be occupied only as ancillary accommodation to the 
dwelling house and not as separate residential units.  
 

4 Unless within 3 months of the date of this decision a Flood Risk Assessment is 
submitted in writing to the Local Planning Authority for approval, and unless the 
approved scheme is implemented within 3 months of the Local Planning Authority's 
approval, the use of the site hereby permitted shall cease until such time as a Flood 

Page 41



Risk Assessment is approved and implemented; and if no scheme in accordance 
with this condition is approved within 18 months of the date of this decision, the use 
of the site hereby permitted shall cease until such time as a scheme approved by 
the Local Planning Authority is implemented. 
 
 

5 There shall be no stationing or parking of LGVs or vehicles over 3.5T on site, and no 
commercial or business uses shall take place at any time on the site. 
 
 

6 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details. 
 

 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) 
 
This application is before this Committee since it has been ‘called in’ by Councillor Bassett 
(Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, 
Schedule 1, Appendix A.(h)) 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site was originally a recreational chalet plot located within the Carthegena Estate, 
Nazeing.  It is understood from Council records that the chalet became lawfully used as a 
dwellinghouse sometime in the late 1970’s/early 1980’s and the year round occupation of the 
chalet is lawful.  There is a shed in the rear garden which was erected within the limits of permitted 
development and Council records concur with this view.  The site has an area of approximately 
1400 sq. m and is relatively well screened from the surrounding area by existing hedging.  The site 
is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt, the designated Carthegena Holiday Estate, and the 
Lee Valley Regional Park. Furthermore the site lies within the Environment Agency Flood Zones 2 
and 3. 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Part retrospective consent is being sought for the use of the site as a mixed use of single dwelling 
and residential caravan site for an extended gypsy family with 4 caravans.  Two caravans are 
located to the rear of the site and are in situ, with two proposed caravans to be located towards the 
front of the site.  The site has been used by the current occupants since 2003; however recent 
enforcement investigations have highlighted the need for planning permission on the site.  The 
rear caravans are self contained and occupied by the Applicant’s sons and respective 
spouses/family.  The proposed additional caravans are for the Applicant’s two daughters and the 
applicant’s Mother in Law – the two proposed caravans would be used as sleeping 
accommodation but meals and bathroom facilities would be provided within the existing dwelling.    
 
Relevant History: 
 
No relevant history on this site other than that outlined above 
Recent history at adjacent sites:  

Page 42



Auburnville - a Gypsy Site was granted planning consent on appeal for a temporary period in 
September 2011 
Devoncot – EPF/2411/11 - Use of site for private gypsy/traveller site for one family comprising two 
mobile homes, two touring caravans and utility building – Allowed temporary consent – January 
2012 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2 – Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment 
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt 
GB5 – Residential moorings and non-permanent dwellings 
GB10 – Development in the Lee Valley Regional Park 
H10A – Gypsy caravan sites 
RST9 – Carthegena and Riverside chalet estates 
RST24 – Design and location of development in the LVRP 
U2A – Development in Flood Risk Areas 
U2B – Catchment effects 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
2 neighbours were consulted and a Site Notice displayed on 15th February 2012 
 
PARISH COUNCIL – Objections – This application is within the Green Belt and the Lee Valley 
Regional Park and would be contrary to policies GB10, GB15, RST 24 and RST 9.  The property is 
a holiday home and not a residential dwelling.   
 
LVRPA - The Authority has a substantial concern regarding the intensification of the existing 
residential use of the site on grounds that residential use is contrary to Section 12 of the Lee 
Valley Regional Park Act 1966 and is not compatible with the Green Belt or Regional Park 
designations. The development increases the visual impacts on the Green Belt and Regional Park 
and approval of such an intensification could set an undesirable precedent.  The Authority 
requests that the Council take enforcement action to secure the cessation of this use and requiring 
removal of unauthorised buildings. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The use of land within the Green Belt for the stationing of caravans for residential use is 
considered to constitute ‘inappropriate development’, as such the main considerations of this 
proposal is whether there are sufficient very special circumstances to outweigh this, and any other 
identified harm (such as the impact on the LVRP) and with regards to flood risk. 
 
Harm to Green Belt: 
 
The application site is within the Metropolitan Green Belt where the presumption is against 
inappropriate development unless there are very special circumstances that clearly outweigh this 
harm.  The stationing of caravans for residential purposes does not fall within the acceptable uses 
permitted within the Green Belt as outlined within PPG2 and Local Plan Policy GB2A and therefore 
this use is by definition harmful to the openness of the Green Belt.   
 
However, notwithstanding the above, the application site has a lawful use as a dwelling house and 
therefore the use of the land is residential.  The two proposed caravans to the front of the site are 
for ancillary living accommodation for the Applicant’s daughters and Mother in Law, with meals 
and bathroom facilities provided by the main dwelling, therefore the proposed caravans would be 
ancillary to the use of Haslingfield as a single dwelling and would not require planning permission 
in their own right.  This would be the same as if an outbuilding within the curtilage of a residential 

Page 43



dwelling were converted to ancillary accommodation for a family member and therefore there is no 
change of use of the land and planning permission is not required.  As these caravans have also 
been included within the application this provides the opportunity to limit the number of caravans 
on the site and limit occupation only to family members if this application were approved.  This 
would avoid any additional pressure on the Green Belt.   
 
The existing two caravans to the rear of the site are used by the Applicant’s two sons and are self 
contained, not requiring facilities from the main house, and require planning permission because 
they each from a separate planning unit.  The use of the rear part of the site for a permanent 
Gypsy/Traveller pitch, with the associated residential paraphernalia and intensification of the 
existing use, would clearly have a greater impact on this Green Belt location than the existing 
single dwelling use.   
 
However, as outlined within the adjacent site history, an Enforcement Notice for the use of 
Auburnville, also within the Carthegena Estate, for a Gypsy Site was granted planning consent on 
appeal for a temporary period in September 2011.  Within this appeal decision the Planning 
Inspector recognises that  
 
“there would be some additional impact on openness” however the Inspector concludes that “there 
is limited additional harm to the openness and the purpose of the Green Belt. The effect on the 
character and appearance of the surrounding countryside would not be unacceptable”. As such, 
whilst very special circumstances would be required to clearly outweigh the ‘in principle’ harm from 
this development, a similar view should be taken to the physical harm to that at Auburnville.   
 
The four arguments put forward with this application are, there is a national, regional and local 
need for additional Gypsy sites, that this is an existing residential site with a lawful use, the 
applicant and family members have access to health care and education and the two caravans are 
to the rear of the site are for family members as such this could constitute special circumstances to 
outweigh the harm to the Green Belt.  
 
Other harm: 
 
Aside from the above ‘in principle’ harm to the Green Belt, the application site is also located within 
the Lee Valley Regional Park and Flood Zones 2 and 3. When assessing ‘very special 
circumstances’, these must clearly outweigh the harm to the Green Belt “and any other harm” as 
stated within PPG2. 
 
Impact on LVRP: 
 
With regards to development within the Carthegena estate, policy RST9 states that: 

 
The Council will not grant planning permission for any development within the chalet 
estates at Carthegena and Riverside where this would prejudice the Lee Valley 
Regional Park Authority’s proposals for the area. 

 
This is backed up by policy GB10, which only allows for development within the LVRP which is 
“necessary to enhance the function and enjoyment of the Park for its users”. As the LVRPA has 
objected to this proposal due to the intensification of the use the proposed development clearly 
prejudices their proposals for the area.  The proposal does not “conserve and, where possible, 
enhance the landscape of the Park or its setting”, as required within Local Plan policy RST24, and 
the scheme would not “have regard to the importance of the Park for leisure, recreational and 
nature conservation. (ii) safeguard the amenity and future development of the park; and (iii) 
conserve and, where possible, enhance the landscape of the Park or its setting”.  
 

Page 44



The Inspector in the appeal decision for Auburnville stated that ‘It (the proposal) would frustrate 
the Regional Park Authority’s policy of obtaining plots as they become available and thereby 
prejudice the Authority’s proposals for the area.  It is considered that this application also fails to 
comply with policy relating to the Lea Valley Regional Park.   
 
Flood risk: 
 
The application site is located within the Environment Agency Flood Zone 2 and 3.  A Flood Risk 
Assessment was not submitted with the application and, as such, the Environment Agency object 
to the development as the use of the site for a Gypsy/Traveller site is classified as ‘highly 
vulnerable’ and no justification has been provided as to why it would be acceptable or appropriate 
in this area (which has a high probability of flooding). 
 
The Planning Inspector assessed the issues of flood risk when assessing Auburnville as a Gypsy 
site, and stated, given the inadequate FRA submitted, “I am unable to conclude that the degree of 
flood risk to site occupants and others would be acceptable throughout the lifetime of the proposed 
land use. This is a factor to which I attach considerable weight”. As no FRA has been submitted 
with this application there is no way to assess the potential long term flood risk resulting from this 
site. On the appeal at Auburnville it was concluded that this is “an area that is unsatisfactory for 
such development from a flood risk perspective”. 
 
Very special circumstances: 
 
Existing use: 
 
The applicants (Mr and Mrs Connors and their family members) have resided on the site since 
2003.  It is not considered that the part retrospective nature of the development alone constitutes 
very special circumstances that clearly outweigh the in principle harm on the openness of the 
Green Belt, the harm to the function and enjoyment of the LVRP, and the risk of flooding. 
 
Need for additional Gypsy sites: 
 
The need for additional Gypsy and Traveller sites is a common issue raised, however this need 
will be dealt with through the allocation of land. Until this time applications are being considered on 
a case by case basis. However it is not considered that this specified need is sufficient to 
constitute very special circumstance. 
 
The argument for an outstanding need for Gypsy sites was assessed by the Planning Inspector on 
the Auburnville appeal, which was dealt with thoroughly at a Public Inquiry, and it is stated within 
the appeal decision that: 
 
“Bearing in mind the permissions which have been granted by the Council, or on appeal, in recent 
years it is clear that good progress has already been made towards the provision of additional 
Gypsy sites in order to achieve the RSS requirement, even though land has not yet been 
specifically allocated for this purpose. The Council indicates that Policy H10A was prepared and 
adopted having regard to quantitative assessments at that time. Even so, this criteria-based policy 
is now somewhat out-of-date and does not reflect the Circular 01/2006 guidance. The current 

Page 45



inadequacies of the Development Plan Gypsy policy background is a material consideration of 
some weight in this appeal”. 
 
The Inspector then goes on to state “I conclude that a significant unmet need already exists in the 
District. This is a factor which weighs strongly in favour of the appellant”. 
 
 
Personal circumstances: 
 
The applicants have resided on the site for a period of approximately nine years.  The application 
site provides a settled base from which to access health care facilities and schooling, and a 
moderate amount of weight should be attributed to this. 
 
Conclusions: 
 
The appeal on Auburnville, coupled with the recent approval at Devoncot, are both comparable to 
this case as similar arguments were put forward as those put forward in this instance.  However, 
unlike Auburnvillle and Devoncot this proposal is on a site that benefits from use as a dwelling 
rather than holiday use and therefore in comparison holds greater weight, particularly, as part of 
this application, the front two proposed caravans are ancillary to the dwellinghouse and therefore 
would not require planning permission in their own right.   Whilst the personal circumstances of the 
families, at Auburnville, Devoncot and at this application site differ, the appeal decision on 
Auburnville, and the subsequent approval on Devoncot are a material consideration in this 
instance. 
 
The Planning Inspector previously assessed the need for additional Gypsy sites in the District and 
personal circumstances of the occupants against the in principle harm of the development in the 
Green Belt, impact on the LVRP and potential flood risk. To this they concluded that: 
 
“The material considerations in support of this appeal taken together do not outweigh the conflict 
with Development Plan and national policies designed to protect the Green Belt so as to justify the 
grant of a full planning permission on the basis of very special circumstances.” 
 
However, the Inspector goes on to state that: 
 
“There is an unmet need but no available alternative Gypsy and Traveller site provision in the 
area. There is a reasonable expectation that substantial progress will have been made as regards 
the availability of alternative sites in the area to meet that need at the end of the period of 5 years. 
This will allow time for the Council’s emerging housing policy strategy that will include Gypsy and 
Traveller site provision to make substantial progress.” 
 
“The grant of a 5 year temporary permission would also enable the family to access medical and 
educational services, and continue to receive the support and care that they need, without 
disruption. The harm resulting from a temporary planning permission would not endure 
permanently. I conclude that the factors in support of this appeal, including the need for Gypsy 
sites in the area, and the personal accommodation needs and circumstances of this particular 
Gypsy family, taken together amount to very special circumstances sufficient to justify the grant of 
a temporary planning permission for the period of 5 years”. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The proposed development constitutes inappropriate development within the Green Belt, would 
adversely impact on the character, use and future development of the Lee Valley Regional Park, 
and is in a location not suitable for this type of development due to flood risk. Insufficient very 

Page 46



special circumstances exist to clearly outweigh this harm and to justify a permanent consent being 
given. 
 
However, as concluded by the Planning Inspectorate at the nearby Auburnville site, the need for 
additional Gypsy sites within the area and personal circumstances of the applicants would be 
considered sufficient to amount to very special circumstances to justify the grant of a temporary 
planning permission.  Planning Committee also agreed with the Inspector in deciding the 
application for Devoncot which was granted a five year temporary consent in January.   
 
It is considered acceptable to grant a temporary permission for this application to coincide with that 
given at Devoncot and therefore a temporary consent which would end in January 2017.  This is 
considered to allow ample time for the Council to progress with their housing policy strategy to 
provide allocated Gypsy site provision.  A temporary consent would also provide the Council with 
the opportunity to control the number of caravans on the site and limit the occupants to family 
members.  As such the proposed development is recommended for a temporary planning 
approval, subject to conditions. 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Marie-Claire Tovey 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564371 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 47



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

U n d

D e f

W a r d  B d y

U n d

W a r d  B d y

U n d

D e f

U n d

B o r
o  C

o n s
t  B d

y

B o r
o  C

o n s
t  B d

y

C R
C o  

C o n
s t  B

d y

C R
C o  

C o n
s t  B

d y

D e v o n c o t

Shavauneen

H a s l i n g f i e l d

R o y d e n e

Club

Auburnville

Sailing

Rosy Lea

C l u b

House

Morningside

G lendar e

T a n ks

Works

Club

Tk

D e v o n c o t

Shavauneen

H a s l i n g f i e l d

R o y d e n e

Club

Auburnville

Sailing

Rosy Lea

C l u b

House

Morningside

G lendar e

Works

Club

T a n ks

Tk

R i v e
r  L e

e  N
a v i g

a t i o
n

R i v e
r  L e

e  N a
v i g a

t i o n

Boating Lake

o r  L
e eR i v

e r  L
e a

Boating Lake

o r  L
e e

R i v e
r  L e

e  N a
v i g a

t i o n

R i v e
r  L e

e  N
a v i g

a t i o
n

R i v
e r  L

e a

C a r
t h a g

e n a
 L o c

k

Caravan Site

FB

FB

P a
t h

T o w
i n g  

P a t h

Pa t h  ( u m )

FB

Carthagena
Weir

Slipway

El Sub Sta

Caravan Site

Wr T

Landing Stage

Wr T

Slipway

FB

Pa t h  ( u m )

T r
a c
k

T r
a c
k

T r a
c k

T r a
c k

El Sub Sta

Wr T

Caravan Site

Wr T

Landing Stage

FB

C a r
t h a g

e n a
 L o c

k

Caravan Site

Carthagena

FB

Weir

T o w
i n g  

P a t h

P a
t h

Caravan SiteCaravan Site

Nazeing MeadNazeing Mead

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee West 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

4 
Application Number: EPF/0144/12 
Site Name: Haslingfield, Meadgate Road, 

Carthegena Estate, Nazeing, EN10 6TA 
Scale of Plot: 1/2500 

Page 48


	Agenda
	2 Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
	Area Planning Subcommittee West - members photo sheet 11-12

	4 Minutes
	7 Development Control
	West 21 Mar 2012


